
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu)

1

CS/NG

Dydd Mercher, 25 Awst 2021

Maureen Potter 01352 702322
maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng David Wisinger (Cadeirydd)

Cynghorwyr: Mike Allport, Bernie Attridge, 
Chris Bithell, Derek Butler, Chris Dolphin, 
Ian Dunbar, Veronica Gay, Gladys Healey, 
Patrick Heesom, Christine Jones, 
Richard Jones, Richard Lloyd, Ted Palmer, 
Mike Peers, Neville Phillips a Owen Thomas

Annwyl Syr / Fadam

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD ANGHYSBELL
PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO

DYDD MERCHER, 1 MEDI, 2021 am 1.00 PM

Yn ddiffuant,

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Sylwch: Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod dros y we.  Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar 
wefan y Cyngor.  Bydd recordiad o’r cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y cyfarfod ar 
https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch ag aelod o’r Tîm Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd ar 01352 702345.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home


2

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD 

3 SYLWADAU HWYR 

4 COFNODION (Tudalennau 5 - 10)
I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 21 Gorfennaf 2021.

5 EITEMAU I'W GOHIRIO 

6 ADRODDIAD Y PRIF SWYDDOG (CYNLLUNIO, AMGYLCHEDD AC 
ECONOMI) 
Mae adroddiad y Prif Swyddog (Cynllunio, Amgylchedd ac Economi) yn 
amgaeedig.

ADRODDIAD Y PRIF SWYDDOG (CYNLLUNIO, AMGYLCHEDD AC ECONOMI) 
AR GYFER Y PYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 1 MEDI 2021

Rhif yr 
eitem

Cyfeirnod y 
Ffeil

DISGRIFIAD

Ceisiadau sy'n cael eu hadrodd er penderfyniad (C = Cymeradwyaeth, G = Gwrthod)
6.1  C - 062135 Amrywio/Dileu Amod - Cais ar gyfer amrywio amod rhif 2 yn dilyn caniatâd 

cynllunio (057808) yn (safle hen garej) ar y tir yng nghefn 31 Welsh Road, 
Garden City, Glannau Dyfrdwy (Tudalennau 11 - 24)

Sylwch y gall fod 10 munud o egwyl yn y cyfarfod hwn os yw’n para fwy na 
dwy awr



3

Nodyn Gweithdrefnol ar redeg cyfarfodydd

Bydd y Cadeirydd yn agor y cyfarfodydd ac yn cyflwyno eu hunain.

Bydd nifer o Gynghorwyr yn mynychu cyfarfodydd. Bydd swyddogion hefyd yn 
mynychu cyfarfodydd i gyflwyno adroddiadau, gyda swyddogion Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd yn trefnu a chynnal y cyfarfodydd.  

Gofynnir i bawb sy’n mynychu i sicrhau bod eu ffonau symudol wedi diffodd a bod 
unrhyw sain gefndirol yn cael ei gadw mor dawel â phosib.  

Dylai’r holl feicroffonau gael eu rhoi “ar miwt” yn ystod y cyfarfod a dim ond pan 
fyddwch yn cael eich gwahodd i siarad gan y Cadeirydd y dylid eu rhoi ymlaen. Pan 
fydd gwahoddedigion wedi gorffen siarad dylen nhw roi eu hunain yn ôl “ar miwt”.

Er mwyn mynegi eu bod nhw eisiau siarad bydd Cynghorwyr yn defnyddio’r 
cyfleuster ‘chat’ neu yn defnyddio’r swyddogaeth ‘raise hand’ sy’n dangos eicon codi 
llaw electronig. Mae’r swyddogaeth ‘chat’ hefyd yn gallu cael ei ddefnyddio i ofyn 
cwestiynau, i wneud sylwadau perthnasol ac yn gyfle i’r swyddog gynghori neu 
ddiweddaru’r cynghorwyr.

Bydd y Cadeirydd yn galw ar y siaradwyr, gan gyfeirio at aelod etholedig fel 
‘Cynghorydd’ a swyddogion yn ôl eu teitl swydd h.y. Prif Weithredwr neu enw.  O 
bryd i’w gilydd mae’r swyddog sy’n cynghori’r Cadeirydd yn egluro pwyntiau 
gweithdrefnol neu’n awgrymu geiriad arall ar gyfer cynigion er mwyn cynorthwyo’r 
Pwyllgor. 

Os, a phan y cynhelir pleidlais, mi fydd y Cadeirydd yn egluro mai dim ond y rheiny 
sy’n gwrthwynebu’r cynnig/cynigion, neu sy’n dymuno ymatal a fydd angen mynegi 
hynny drwy ddefnyddio’r swyddogaeth ‘chat’.  Bydd y swyddog sy’n cynghori’r 
Cadeirydd yn mynegi os bydd y cynigion yn cael eu derbyn. 

Os oes angen pleidlais fwy ffurfiol, bydd hynny yn ôl galwad enwau – lle gofynnir i 
bob Cynghorydd yn ei dro (yn nhrefn yr wyddor) sut mae ef / hi yn dymuno 
pleidleisio.

Yng nghyfarfodydd Pwyllgorau Cynllunio a Chyngor Sir mae amseroedd siaradwyr 
yn gyfyngedig.  Bydd cloch yn cael ei chanu i roi gwybod i’r siaradwyr bod ganddyn 
nhw funud ar ôl. 

Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor.  Bydd recordiad o’r 
cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y cyfarfod ar https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home

https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 JULY 2021

Minutes of the remote attendance meeting of the Planning Committee of Flintshire 
County Council held on Wednesday, 21 July 2021

PRESENT: Councillor David Wisinger (Chairman)
Councillors: Mike Allport, Chris Bithell, Chris Dolphin, Ian Dunbar, Veronica Gay, 
Gladys Healey, Patrick Heesom, Christine Jones, Richard Jones, Richard Lloyd, 
Ted Palmer, Neville Phillips and Owen Thomas

APOLOGIES: Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Derek Butler and Mike Peers

ALSO PRESENT:
The following attended as local Members to speak on those items:
Councillor Michelle Perfect - Agenda item 6.6 (060699)
Councillor Aaron Shotton - Agenda item 6.3 (061294)

IN ATTENDANCE:
Chief Officer (Planning, Environment & Economy), Development Manager, Service 
Manager - Strategy, Team Leader - Planning, Planning Officers, Senior Engineer - 
Highways Development Control, Legal Services Manager, Team Leader - Democratic 
Services and Democratic Services Officer

8. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

On Agenda item 6.5 (062300), Councillor Christine Jones advised that whilst 
she did not have a personal or prejudicial interest, as Local Member she had been 
involved in raising concerns about the application on behalf of local residents.  As 
such, she would not speak or vote on the application.

On Agenda item 6.2 (062917), Councillor Veronica Gay advised that she had 
been contacted on more than one occasion about the application.

9. LATE OBSERVATIONS

The Chairman allowed Members an opportunity to read the late observations 
which had been circulated prior to the meeting and were appended to the agenda on 
the Council’s website:

https://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=490&
MId=4861&LLL=0

10. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 May 2021 were confirmed as a correct 
record, as moved and seconded by Councillors Richard Lloyd and Chris Bithell.

Tudalen 5

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4

https://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=490&MId=4861&LLL=0
https://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=490&MId=4861&LLL=0


RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a true and correct record.

11. ITEMS TO BE DEFERRED

No items were recommended for deferral.

12. REPORTS OF THE CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING, ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY)

RESOLVED:

That decisions be recorded as shown on the Planning Application schedule attached 
as an appendix.

13. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

On commencement of the meeting, there were no members of the press in 
attendance.

(The meeting started at 1pm and ended at 4pm)

…………………………
Chairman

Meetings of the Planning Committee are webcast and can be viewed by visiting the 
webcast library at: http://flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

Tudalen 6

http://flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


PLANNING COMMITTEE ON 21 JULY 2021

ITEM NO TOWN/
COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL

SITE/PROPOSAL THIRD PARTY / LOCAL 
MEMBER OBSERVATIONS

RESOLUTION

052236 Llanfynydd 
Community 
Council

Outline - Outline application for 
residential development and 
associated works at Atlas 
Yard, Corwen Road, 
Pontybodkin

- That planning permission be refused in 
accordance with the officer 
recommendation for the reasons set out 
in the report.

062917 Saltney Town 
Council

Full application - Erection of a 
side and ground floor rear 
extension at 5 Alyndale Road, 
Saltney

A statement of support was read 
out on behalf of the applicant, 
Mr S Harris.

A statement of objection was 
read out on behalf of a local 
resident, Mrs Chaloner.

That planning permission be granted 
subject to the conditions set out in the 
report, in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.

061294 Connah’s Quay 
Town Council

Full application - Change of 
use from dwelling house to 
house in multiple occupation at 
7 Howard Street, Connah’s 
Quay

Councillor Aaron Shotton, as 
local Ward Member, spoke 
against the application.

That planning permission be granted 
subject to the conditions set out in the 
report, in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.

T
udalen 7



ITEM NO TOWN/
COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL

SITE/PROPOSAL THIRD PARTY / LOCAL 
MEMBER OBSERVATIONS

RESOLUTION

062110 Cilcain 
Community 
Council and 
Halkyn 
Community 
Council

Full application - Phased 
extraction of some 28.38m 
tonnes of limestone from within 
the existing permitted area at 
Hendre Quarry and from within 
an eastern extension to the 
quarry as a comprehensive 
extension and consolidation 
scheme; retention of the 
existing processing plant and 
related infrastructure for the 
duration of the development; 
retention and use of the 
existing access for the duration 
of the development; 
construction and landscaping 
of a screening landform; and 
implementation of a restoration 
scheme for both the existing 
quarry and extension area at 
Hendre Quarry, Denbigh Road, 
Rhydymwyn

Mr M Lawer, Agent, spoke in 
support of the application.

A statement of support, with 
conditions, was read out on 
behalf of Cilcain Community 
Council.

A statement of support from the 
local Member, Councillor Colin 
Legg, was appended to the report 
on the agenda.

That planning permission be granted 
subject to the applicant entering into a 
Section 106 Obligation for formalisation 
of the annual payment made to North 
Wales Wildlife Trust for the ongoing 
management of Coed y Felin Nature 
Reserve and variation of the existing 
legal agreement which imposes a higher 
blast limit of 20mm/s ppv for the 
Gwrachen Farm, and the conditions as 
set out in the report, in accordance with 
the officer recommendation.  Also 
subject to the additional three conditions 
put forward by United Utilities shown in 
the late observations.

T
udalen 8



ITEM NO TOWN/
COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL

SITE/PROPOSAL THIRD PARTY / LOCAL 
MEMBER OBSERVATIONS

RESOLUTION

062300 Sealand 
Community 
Council

Vary/Remove Condition - 
Application for variation of 
condition no.2 following grant 
of planning permission ref: 
059514 at former RAF Sealand 
South Camp, Welsh Road, 
Sealand

As local Member, Councillor 
Christine Jones did not take part 
in the debate or vote as referred 
to under Declarations of Interest.

That planning permission be granted to 
vary the planning condition and 
associated Section 106 Agreement as 
stated in the conditions set out in the 
report, in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.

060699 Flint Town 
Council

Outline - Outline Application 
with all matters reserved for 
subsequent approval for the 
proposed erection of up to 
18no. dwellings with 
associated works on land at 
Tan Y Bryn, Bryn Road, Flint

Mr V Davies, a local resident, 
spoke against the application.

Councillor Michelle Perfect, as 
local Member, spoke against the 
application.

That planning permission be refused, 
against the officer recommendation, on 
the following grounds: That the proposal 
(i) forms overdevelopment of the site 
and (ii) has an insufficient highway 
layout to provide access.

060591 Llanasa 
Community 
Council

Full application - Change of 
use of land for 4 no. Gypsy / 
Traveller Pitches and 1 no. 
communal Amenity Block/ 
Dayroom at Ty Dwr Bungalow, 
Tanlan, Ffynnongroyw

Mr T Mennell, the Agent, spoke in 
support of the application.

A statement of objection from a 
local resident was appended to 
the report on the agenda.

A request for further Member 
training was noted.

That planning permission be granted 
subject to the conditions set out in the 
report, in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.

T
udalen 9



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 1st SEPTEMBER 2021

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING, ENVIRONMENT 
AND ECONOMY)

SUBJECT: APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF 
CONDITION NO2. (APPROVED PLANS) 
ATTACHED TO PLANNING PERMISSION 
REFERENCE 057808

APPLICATION 
NUMBER: 062135

APPLICANT: MR R. WILLIAMS

SITE: LAND TO THE REAR OF 31 WELSH ROAD, 
GARDEN CITY, DEESIDE

APPLICATION 
VALID DATE: 23RD NOVEMBER 2020

LOCAL MEMBERS: COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE JONES – NOMINATED 
COUNCILLOR DAVID WISINGER 

TOWN/COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL: SEALAND COMMUNITY COUNCIL

REASON FOR 
COMMITTEE: DUE TO CONCERNS THAT THE DEVELOPER 

HAS FAILED TO ADHERE TO THE CONDITIONS 
IMPOSED BY THE PLANNING PERMISSION AND 
THE S106 AGREEMENT. 

SITE VISIT: YES

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01 This is an application to vary condition number 2 (approved plans 
and documents) following the grant of planning permission 057808 
for the approval of reserved matters including appearance, layout, 
scale, landscaping and access at land to the rear of 31 Welsh Road, 
Garden City. 

Tudalen 11

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6.1



1.02

1.03

1.04

The variations as proposed include the erection of a boundary fence 
on the south of the site, changes to the parking with a reduction in 
spaces to 9 and a reduction in the width of the access road. 

The provision of a fence maintains pedestrian access to Sealand 
Avenue, whilst providing a clear demarcation of the residential site. 
The height and choice of materials are considered acceptable in this 
location. 

The reduction in the total number of parking spaces to serve the 
development to 9 falls below the guidelines as set out in SPGN 
No.11. However, significant consideration has been given to the 
highly sustainable location. Finally, the reduction in the width of the 
access road to 3.45 metres will still provide adequate access to 
serve the site whilst maintaining pedestrian safety. 

It is considered that the submitted details are acceptable.

2.00

2.01

RECOMMENDATION: TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, 
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING 

That conditional planning permission be granted, subject to the 
applicant entering into a Section 106 Obligation to provide: 

 road resurfacing and future maintainance.

Conditions
 Compliance with the approved plans

3.00 CONSULTATIONS

3.01 Local Member 
Councillor Christine Jones – Raises concerns with the application

Councillor Wisinger
Raises concerns that the developers have not adhered to the 
conditions attached to the planning permission or the S106 
agreement. 

Sealand Community Council
Raises objections to the application due to concerns that the fencing 
as already built is on the route of a public right of way and restricts 
vehicles accessing the adjacent sewerage pumping station. 

Highways Development Control
Raises no objection to the proposed variation. Whilst the proposed 
parking provision for the development falls slightly below that as set 
out in SPGN No.11 given the sustainable location of the site the 
available parking is considered acceptable. 

Tudalen 12



Public Rights of Way
No objections raised to the proposed development as there are no 
public footpaths in the vicinity. 

Community and Business Protection
No objections raised to the proposed development

4.00 PUBLICITY

4.01 Neighbour notification letters posted. One letter of objection 
received raising the following:

 Concerns that the access road has not been resurfaced
 The erection of the fence restricts access to the rear of 

properties on Welsh Road. 
 The fence detracts from the character and appearance of the 

area and is over bearing on neighbouring properties. 
 A security light which has been installed at the development 

site adversely impacts neighbouring properties

5.00 SITE HISTORY

5.01 057808
Application for approval of reserved matters appearance, layout, 
scale, landscaping and access for the erection of 6 dwellings 
following outline approval. (052887) – Conditional Permission 14th 
March 2018

052887
Outline application for the erection of 6no. dwellings – Conditional 
Permission 10th February 2017

6.00 PLANNING POLICIES

6.01 Flintshire Unitary Development Plan 
STR1 - New Development
STR4 - Housing
GEN1 - General Requirements for Development
GEN2 - Development Inside Settlement Boundaries
D1 - Design Quality, Location and Layout
D2 - Design
D3 - Landscaping
AC13 - Access and Traffic Impact
AC18 - Parking Provision and New Development
HSG3 – Housing on Unallocated Sites within Settlement Boundaries
HSG8 - Density of Development
SR5 - Outdoor Playing Space and New Residential Development
EWP17 - Flood Risk

Tudalen 13



Supplementary Planning Guidance Notes
SPGN No 2. Space Around Dwellings 
SPGN No 3. Landscaping
SPGN No 11. Parking Standards

National Planning Policy
Planning Policy Wales Edition 11 
Future Wales Plan 2020-2040

7.00 PLANNING APPRAISAL

7.01

7.02

Introduction
This is an application to vary Condition Number 2 attached to 
reserved matters permission reference 057808 which was granted 
conditional permission in March 2018. Condition 2 relates to the list 
of approved plans and documents, including site layout, parking 
provision and boundary treatments. 

The development of six houses as granted by the outline consent 
has been fully built out. Following completion, complaints were 
received with regards to the erection of a fence on the southern 
boundary of the site. This fence was not shown on the approved 
plans. The installation of the fence impacts on the manoeuvrability 
of vehicles utilising the approved car parking layout. This application 
seeks to rectify the current breach of planning control through a 
variation of Condition No2 attached to ref 057808.

7.03 Site Description
The application site is situated to the north of Welsh Road and is
accessed via a shared u-shaped access which runs between 31 
Welsh Road, a residential property, and 37 Welsh Road which is a 
pharmacy. The site was formerly a garage site owned by the 
Council which was sold and has since been redeveloped with the 
erection of 6 dwellings in the form of three semi-detached houses. 
The site is surrounded by residential properties which are all two 
storey. There is a Welsh Water pumping station located directly to 
the east of the site.

7.04 Proposed Development
The application proposes to vary Condition No2 attached to the 
reserved matters consent 057808 which confirms that the 
development should be carried out strictly in accordance with the list 
of approved plans and documents. Of those plans, drawing number 
203-03A showed the proposed site plan and included provision for 
14 car parking spaces and soft/hard landscaping. The plan also 
noted that rear access would be retained for properties on Welsh 
Road.

Tudalen 14



7.05

7.06

In addition the approved block plan shows the proposed works to 
the access road alongside 31 Welsh Road. 

The proposal seeks to vary the approved plans to allow the 
retention of a 1.8 metre high powder coated palisade fence with 
brick pillars which has been erected on the southern boundary. In 
addition, the application proposes to amend the parking layout to 
provide a total of 9 spaces. Finally, the application seeks to vary the 
width of the access road from 3.7 metres to 3.45 metres.

7.07

7.08

Main Issues
The main issues to consider in the determination of this application 
are the design and impact of the position of the fence on 
neighbouring residential occupants and highway implications as a 
result of the reduction in parking spaces together with alterations to 
the access road. 

A S106 is proposed to carry across the remaining obligations 
imposed on the original planning permission relating to re-surfacing 
of the road and future maintenance.

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

Principle of Development
The principle of the development of 6 houses on this site was
established by the outline and subsequent reserved matters 
consents. This application does not seek to vary any of the details of 
the dwellings on the site. The principle of residential development is 
accepted and the specific matters subject of this application will be 
dealt with separately below. 

Boundary Treatment
The approved site layout plan shows the south of the site to be open 
with no form of boundary treatment. Visually there was no 
demarcation between the privately owned development site and the 
footpath which runs behind the properties on Welsh Road through to 
Sealand Avenue. 

This footpath is not a definitive public right of way, but is a legacy 
from when the majority of the area was owned by the Council and 
was Local Authority housing with associated garages. This access 
path has been retained by the Council for pedestrian use only and 
has bollards at its entrance onto Sealand Avenue. 

The fence which is the subject of this proposal provides a boundary 
to the site, whilst maintaining pedestrian access to the informal 
footpath and rear gardens of Welsh Road. 

Concerns have been received by residents that the erection of the 
fence impedes vehicular access to the rear of their properties on 
Welsh Road. It is understood that the Council retains a right of 
access by foot and vehicles along the access way between 31 

Tudalen 15



7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

Welsh Road and 35 Welsh Road. Whilst the right of access to other 
properties were indicated on the approved plans, there is no 
evidence that this should be vehicular. Additionally, Members 
should be aware that matters of private access are a civil matter and 
not a material planning consideration. 

From a design perspective the site is located within the defined 
settlement boundary of Garden City to the rear of existing residential 
properties and close to a pumping station and commercial unit. The 
fence is not considered to be incongruous within the surroundings 
and is acceptable in this location. 

The applicant has sited concerns that the removal of the fence 
would give rise to potential damage to private property but this is not 
a material planning consideration. Additionally, concerns over the 
site being used as overflow parking by customers using the shop 
have been raised, but this again is not a material planning 
consideration to which any significance can be attached.

Overall, it is considered that a significant degree of opinion both for 
and against the retention of the fence are in fact not planning 
matters. The provision of a boundary fence at this residential 
development is considered to accord with local planning policy and 
the concerns raised, would not warrant its removal or the refusal of 
this application. 

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

Parking Provision
SPGN no. 11 specifies a maximum provision of 12 spaces to serve 
the 6 no. 3 bedroomed houses and also accepts that in specified 
situations, a lesser provision is acceptable. The application site is in 
a sustainable location with close proximity to a convenience store 
and frequent bus service, it is within a walkable distance of the 
primary school and employment opportunities. The site is 
considered to be in a highly sustainable location.

It is noted that the plans submitted with the application indicates an 
echelon design of parking provision for some spaces however it is 
considered that this echelon design would not work and  the 
maximum amount of spaces would could be accommodated would 
be three spaces with vehicles parked in a perpendicular manner.

It is also noted that informal parking opportunity is also available 
alongside the fence-line opposite plots 3 and 4.

Overall, it is reasonable to accept that a total of 9 dedicated parking 
bays would be provided at the development site, with an additional 
two informal bays alongside the fence-line. Whilst the number of 
dedicated bays falls below the guideline as set out in SPGN No11, 
significant consideration has been given to the sustainable location 

Tudalen 16



7.22

7.23

7.24

of the site and accordingly the provision is acceptable in this 
instance. 

Access
Vehicular access to the site is via an un-adopted access from Welsh
Road which runs between 31 and 35 Welsh Road. The access is
between a residential property and a Spar Shop/post office and
chemist. As part of the outline consent there is a requirement for the
appropriate management and maintenance of the access. The 
applicant has engaged with the Council’s street-scene department 
with regards to the required resurfacing works and concerns have 
been raised that the proposed width of 3.7 metres does not allow for 
any form of footway and pedestrians exiting the shop would step 
into the road. 

It is understood that the 3.7 metre width was imposed during the 
outline consent, but that the road is not and has never been 
considered for formal adoption and therefore not subject to the 
same requirements. 

The reduced width of 3.45 metres is still considered sufficient to 
serve as an un-adopted means of access and resolves any 
concerns with regards to health and safety of pedestrians. In 
consultation with the Highway Authority, the proposed reduction 
does not raise an objection on highway safety grounds. 

7.25

7.26

Other Matters
Concerns have been raised that the provision of parking spaces to 
the front of the pumping station will restrict access. This is a civil 
matter and not one which can be considered as material to this 
application. 

Additionally, the Council are aware of concerns with regards to the 
installation of a security light on the side elevation of plot 6. 
Members are advised that this is not a planning matter but that this 
issue is being dealt with by Officers from the Community and 
Business Protection section and their associated regulatory powers. 

8.00

8.01

CONCLUSION
The application proposes to vary Condition No2 attached to the 
reserved matters approval ref 057808 for the residential 
development at Welsh Road, Garden City. The variations include 
the erection of a boundary fence to the south of the site, changes to 
the parking with a reduction in spaces to 9 and a reduction in the 
width of the access road. 

The provision of a fence maintains pedestrian access to Sealand 
Avenue, whilst providing a clear demarcation of the residential site. 
The height and choice of materials are not considered to be 
incongruous within the surrounding area. 

Tudalen 17



8.02

8.03

8.04

The reduction in the total number of parking spaces to serve the 
development to 9 falls below the guidelines as set out in SPGN 
No.11. However, significant consideration has been given to the 
additional informal parking at the site, together with the site’s highly 
sustainable location. 

Finally, the reduction in the width of the access to 3.45 metres will 
still provide adequate access to serve the site whilst maintaining 
pedestrian safety. 

It is considered that the submitted details are acceptable and I 
therefore recommend that planning permission be granted as set 
out in paragraph 2.01 of this report. 

 
9.00 Other Considerations

The Council has had due regard to its duty under Section 17 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and considered that there would be no 
significant or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a 
result of the recommended decision.

The Council has acted in accordance with the Human Rights Act 
1998 including Article 8 of the Convention and in a manner which is 
necessary in a democratic society in furtherance of the legitimate 
aims of the Act and the Convention.

The Council has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under the Equality Act 2010.

The Council has had due regard to its duty under Section 3 of the 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and considered 
that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the 
achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the 
recommended decision.    

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy
Responses to Consultation
Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: Claire Morter
Telephone: Claire.e.morter@flintshire.gov.uk
Email: 01352 703299

Tudalen 18



Posts

S
TA

FFO
R

D
 R

O
A

D

ardens

WELSH ROAD
Ps

O
rchard W

ay

H
O

LLY
 C

O
U

R
T

LLY
S

 C
E

LY
N

 /

8

22
1

8

21

29

5

1
6

15

1411

4

8

24
23

30

39a

84

37

72

2

35

PO

Ppg Sta

Surgery

6

1
2

P
olice

52

46

56
W

hitegates

Shelter

1
2a

17

LB

37c 43

60
31

39b

2

7 10

1
2

3

9

6

11

37a

89

1

54

18

2

16

2

Lyndale

58
58a

1

14 H
ouse

27

15

1

Garage

1

45

38

66

4

12

13

23to33

2a

2b

15to21

1

64

68

10
3

2

11

3

13

5

Shelter

25

26

35

41

29

28

24

Planning, Environment & Economy,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer:  Mr Andrew Farrow

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number: 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2021.

Location Plan      Scale 1:50,000   

Map Scale

OS Map ref

Planning Application

1:1250

SJ 3269

62135

Application Site

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan
Settlement Boundary

Planning Application Site

Legend

DEESIDE

Tudalen 19



LOCATION PLAN - scale 1:1250

203 - 01

November 2017

1:1250 @ A4

Location Plan

Kevin Shone MCIAT, ICIOB

Chartered Architectural Technologist
13, Leaches Lane,
Mancot, Deeside,
Flintshire, CH5 2EH
Tel 01244 533564
Mobile 07832 968303
Email: kevinshone@btinternet.com

Drawing

Project

NORTH

site boundary

Proposed Housing, land at rear of
31, Welsh Road, Garden City

Tudalen 20



PMS02A
332789.569mE
369034.590mN
4.968mH

WELSH ROAD

A3

investigation may be required to ascertain the full extent of the site services.

1) Ordnance Survey co-ordinates and level are derived from OSTN15 and OSGM15,

2) Only services located during the site survey are shown on this plan. Further 

3) Copyright of this drawing remains the property of PM Surveys UK Ltd. Do not scale from

transformed from WGS84.

this drawing. In the event of any discrepancy, refer query to PM Surveys UK Ltd.

PM

ISO 9001 Registered
Firm

INTERNATIONAL
ACCREDITATION BOARD

PM SURVEYS UK

PM Surveys UK Ltd

Unit 3, Queensferry Industrial Estate

Pentre

Flintshire, CH5 2DJ

Tel: 01244 952477

Email: info@pmsurveys.co.uk

N

S

W E

Nicky Williams

01244 529474

nw2107@me.com

Welsh Road

JW

05/07/21

1:200 PMS20019

PMS20019-x1A

Existing

T
udalen 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
4.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
CL 4.68m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
4.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
4.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
4.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
4.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
4.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
4.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
4.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
C/B

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
C/B

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
4.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
4.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
4.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
CL 4.74m

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
4.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
4.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
4.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
4.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
4.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
4.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
4.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
4.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
4.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
4.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
4.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
4.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
4.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
4.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
4.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
5.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
4.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
4.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
4.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
4.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
4.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
RL 11.02m

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
RL 15.62m

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
4.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
4.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
4.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
4.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
4.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
4.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
4.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
4.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
4.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
4.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
TS/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
TS/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
T/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
MISC. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
MISC. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
5.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
5.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
4.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
4.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
5.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
4.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
4.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
4.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
4.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
4.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
4.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
4.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
4.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
4.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
4.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
4.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
4.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
TS/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
4.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
4.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
4.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
4.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
4.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
4.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
5.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
4.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
4.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
TS/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
T/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
4.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
4.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
4.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
4.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
T/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
ASSUMED COUNCIL BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
ASSUMED COUNCIL BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
TAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
PAV

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Project No

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Approved By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
Dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
Issued:

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
%%UINFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
%%UNOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Revision Information

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Client Info

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Tel: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
Email: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Surveyed By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
Sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
Site Grid North



PMS02A
332789.569mE
369034.590mN
4.968mH

WELSH ROAD

A3

investigation may be required to ascertain the full extent of the site services.

1) Ordnance Survey co-ordinates and level are derived from OSTN15 and OSGM15,

2) Only services located during the site survey are shown on this plan. Further 

3) Copyright of this drawing remains the property of PM Surveys UK Ltd. Do not scale from

transformed from WGS84.

this drawing. In the event of any discrepancy, refer query to PM Surveys UK Ltd.

PM

ISO 9001 Registered
Firm

INTERNATIONAL
ACCREDITATION BOARD

PM SURVEYS UK

PM Surveys UK Ltd

Unit 3, Queensferry Industrial Estate

Pentre

Flintshire, CH5 2DJ

Tel: 01244 952477

Email: info@pmsurveys.co.uk

N

S

W E

Nicky Williams

01244 529474

nw2107@me.com

Welsh Road

JW

05/07/21

1:200 PMS20019

PMS20019-x3

Proposed

T
udalen 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
4.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
CL 4.68m

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
4.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
4.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
4.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
4.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
4.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
4.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
4.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
C/B

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
C/B

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
4.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
4.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
4.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
CL 4.74m

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
4.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
4.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
4.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
4.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
4.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
4.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
4.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
4.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
4.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
5.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
4.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
4.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
4.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
4.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
4.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
RL 11.02m

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
RL 15.62m

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
4.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
4.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
4.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
4.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
4.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
4.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
4.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
4.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
4.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
4.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
TS/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
TS/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
T/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
MISC. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
MISC. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
5.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
5.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
4.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
4.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
5.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
4.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
4.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
4.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
4.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
4.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
4.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
4.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
4.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
4.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
4.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
TS/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
BOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
4.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
4.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
4.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
4.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
4.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
4.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
5.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
4.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
4.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
TS/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
T/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
4.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
4.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
4.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
4.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
4.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
T/IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
ASSUMED COUNCIL BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
ASSUMED COUNCIL BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
NEW WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
NEW WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
4.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
4.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
4.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
4.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
4.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
4.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
4.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
TAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
PAV

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
GULLY REPOSITIONED ALONG NEW KERB LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Project No

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
Approved By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
Dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
Issued:

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
%%UINFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
%%UNOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
Revision Information

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
Client Info

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
Tel: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
Email: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
Surveyed By:

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
Sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
Site Grid North



 
 

S
ite

 p
la

n
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 re

v
is

e
d

 p
a
rk

in
g

 la
y
o

u
t p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

  

P
L

A
N

 re
f R

A
D

 1
    N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 2

0
2

0
 

T
udalen 23



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol


	Rhaglen
	4 Cofnodion
	6.1 062135 - C - Amrywio/Dileu Amod - Cais ar gyfer amrywio amod rhif 2 yn dilyn caniatâd cynllunio (057808) yn (safle hen garej) ar y tir yng nghefn 31 Welsh Road, Garden City, Glannau Dyfrdwy
	Enc. 1 for 062135 - Application for variation of a condition no. 2 following grant of planning permission. (057808)
	62135
	Site Location Plan
	Existing Access Road
	Sheets and Views
	Titleblock


	Proposed Access Road
	Sheets and Views
	Titleblock


	Revised Parking Layout



